
MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
DATE: Tuesday, 4 October 2016
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

Administrative and Governance Issues for the Committee

1  Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  

To receive apologies for absence in accordance with Regulation 7 (6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.

2  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  

To invite Members of the Committee to make any declarations of pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interest in connection with the items on this agenda.

3  Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 16)

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee held on 19th 
July 2016 (Item 3 attached).

Overview and Scrutiny Issues for the Committee

4  South West Yorkshire NHS Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) Inspection Outcome  (Pages 17 - 46)

To consider a report of the Director of Human Resources, Performance and 
Communications (Item 4a attached) in respect of the SWYPFT CQC Inspection 
Summary Report (Item 4b attached) and Individual Service Ratings Summary 
Poster (Item 4c attached).

5  BMBC's Customer Service Strategy 2015-18 - Implementation Update  
(Pages 47 - 52)

To consider a report of the Executive Director of Communities and the Director of 
Human Resources, Performance and Communications (Item 5 attached) in 
respect of an update on the implementation of the Customer Services Strategy 
2015-18, following the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Task and Finish Group 
(TFG) investigation during 2015/16.

Enquiries to Anna Morley, Scrutiny Officer

Phone 01226 775794 or email annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk


To: Chair and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:-

Councillors Ennis (Chair), P. Birkinshaw, G. Carr, Charlesworth, Clarke, Clements, 
Franklin, Frost, Gollick, Daniel Griffin, Hampson, Hand-Davis, Hayward, 
W. Johnson, Lofts, Makinson, Mathers, Mitchell, Philips, Pourali, Sheard, 
Sixsmith MBE, Spence, Tattersall, Unsworth and Wilson together with co-opted 
Members Ms P. Gould, Mr M. Hooton, Ms J. Whitaker and Mr J. Winter and 
Statutory Co-opted Member Ms K. Morritt (Parent Governor Representative)

Electronic Copies Circulated for Information
 Diana Terris, Chief Executive
 Julia Bell, Director of Human Resources, Performance and Communications
 Michael Potter, Service Director, Organisation and Workforce Improvement
 Ian Turner, Service Director, Council Governance
 Andrew Frosdick, Director of Legal and Governance
 Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management
 Press

Paper Copies Circulated for Information
 Majority Members Room
 Opposition Members Rooms, Town Hall – 2 copies

Witnesses
Item 4 (2:00pm)
 Sean Rayner, District Service Director, Barnsley and Wakefield, SWYPFT
 Kate Gorse-Brightmore, Inspection Manager, CQC
 Brigid Reid, Chief Nurse, Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
 Rachel Dickinson, Executive Director, People, BMBC
 Carrie Abbott, Service Director, Public Health, BMBC
 Cllr Jim Andrews, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Spokesperson for Public Health, 

BMBC
 Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson - People (Safeguarding), BMBC

Item 5 (2:45pm approx.)
 Ann O’Flynn, Service Director, Customer Services, BMBC
 Hazel Shaw, Head of Customer Support & Development, BMBC
 Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson - Communities, BMBC



MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
DATE: Tuesday, 19 July 2016
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Ennis (Chair), G. Carr, Charlesworth, 
Clarke, Clements, Franklin, Frost, Gollick, 
Daniel Griffin, Hampson, W. Johnson, Lofts, Makinson, 
Mathers, Philips, Pourali, Spence, Tattersall, Unsworth 
and Wilson together with co-opted members 
Ms P. Gould and Ms J. Whitaker 

12 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives 

Apologies for absence were received from Ms Kate Morritt in accordance with 
Regulation 7 (6) of the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 
2001.

13 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest 

There were declarations of interest from Councillors G Carr, Tattersall and Wilson as 
Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel.

14 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on the 7th June 2016 were approved as a 
true and accurate record. A Member of the committee mentioned the first action point 
as regards the number of referrals from GPs to the Royal Voluntary Service in the 
central area as there had still only been 1 referral. A member also advised that work 
was underway in relation to action point 3 regarding the development and 
implementation of a file in GP practices containing information on local community 
groups/services.

15 Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) Annual Report 2015-16 

The Chair welcomed the following witnesses to the meeting:

 Mel John-Ross, Service Director, Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding, 
BMBC

 Sharon Galvin, Designated Nurse-Safeguarding Children, Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG)

 Councillor Joe Unsworth, Corporate Parenting Panel Member
 Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson - People (Safeguarding)
 Councillor Tim Cheetham, Cabinet Spokesperson  - People (Achieving 

Potential)
 Andrea Wake, Children’s Participation Officer
 Care4Us Council Representatives
 Barnsley Foster Carers

Page 3

Item 3



2

Members proceeded to ask the following questions:

I. What are the key challenges for the services and the Corporate Parenting 
Panel (CPP) for 2016/17?

The committee were advised the priorities of the CPP are to improve educational 
outcomes, challenge school absences and the exclusion or lack of full time and 
suitable provision for all children in care. For the year ahead the priority is to improve 
the emotional health and wellbeing of children in care and their access to timely help 
and intervention. 

II. The report details the number of looked after children who achieved KS2 in 
Reading, Writing and Maths in 2015 was 30%, which is less than the national 
average of 60%; what actions are being taken to improve this figure?

Members were advised the CPP has set up an Education Steering Group which 
focuses on all our children in care. This is attended by our dedicated Virtual Head 
Teacher who will identify and progress help and support needs of our children. 
Comparison with the national average is misleading due to the small cohorts of 
children each year where the performance of only 1 or 2 children can affect the 
overall figures. Each child in the cohort has a personal education plan (PEP).

III. Are all key stakeholders represented on the board and engaged in its work?

The group were advised we have strong partnership arrangements in Barnsley which 
is one of the key strengths of the CPP. We have good attendance at the CPP and 
invite other agencies to provide information and reports. Cllr Bruff attends the 
Care4Us Council who run and chair their own meetings and challenged us on this 
report. Following one of the recommendations from the last Ofsted inspection, to 
increase the input from young people, the CPP meetings have now been moved to 
the evening to make it easier for them to attend. Colleagues are working hard to 
ensure the voice of children in care is at the centre of all we do and in particular are 
trying to ensure the voice of younger children in care is heard.

IV. Do the two young people representing the Care4Us Council feel the CPP is 
acting as a ‘pushy parent’ and doing the best for them?

The representatives nodded and on their behalf, the Children’s Participation Officer 
advised the committee that the children are definitely pushed by their foster carers to 
ensure they attend school, complete their homework and take part in after school 
activities.

V. Are our educational aspirations for looked after children to achieve the 
national average?

Members were advised our aspiration is to improve the achievements of all young 
people in Barnsley and there should be no difference between looked after children 
and the rest of the cohort.

VI. In relation to the ‘Youth Offending’ figures detailed in the report which indicate 
a positive trend; how are we able to be sure of the statement that the 

Page 4



3

offending behaviour being dealt with is not as a result of living within a 
children’s home?

The group were advised that historically young people in care were being convicted 
of offences and unnecessarily gaining a criminal record due to damaging something 
and this being reported to the police. Whereas, if a child not in care damaged 
something, then parents wouldn’t ring the police. It is hoped that this scenario has 
now improved thereby avoiding young people unnecessarily coming into the criminal 
justice system. 

The group were informed the number of young people committing offences were very 
small. The individuals are known to the service and often offences occur before 
young people come into care, however the sanctions end up taking place whilst they 
are in care. 

VII. Are both young people representing the Care4Us Council happy with the level 
of care they receive?

The young people confirmed they were.

VIII. A Member raised concerns over Care Leavers’ Accommodation and asked for 
it to be on a future agenda of the CPP.

The service acknowledged it is important for our care leavers to be in fit for purpose 
accommodation and agreed to include this on a future CPP agenda.  Recently, two of 
our young people in care presented a report to Cabinet regarding Care Leavers’ 
Accommodation. The young people had undertaken a survey amongst themselves 
around what they wanted and their requests were included as part of our Placement 
and Sufficiency Strategy.

IX. How can Members not involved directly in the meetings, support the work of 
the CPP and our children in care?

Members were advised to acknowledge their responsibility as ‘Corporate Parents’, to 
both challenge and scrutinise the CPP Annual Report. Also to champion children in 
care and make sure they get the right response from all services.

X. How can we ensure our children in care who are placed outside the Barnsley 
boundary, receive the same level of care as those who are placed within?

The group were advised the service performs very well in this respect as the majority 
of children are placed within the borough and are less than 20 miles from their home 
address. The children placed out of the area receive regular visits from their social 
worker and the meetings are held with the child on their own, outside their placement 
to ensure they are able to voice any concerns. Each child also has their care plan 
reviewed every 6 months by an Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) who is 
responsible for making sure care plans are progressing in a timely way. Also, we only 
place our children in places rated as ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ by Ofsted.

XI. Do we have any comparative information regarding how our looked after 
children who are placed outside the borough perform academically at Key 
Stage 4 (GCSE) compared to those attending schools within the borough?

Page 5



4

The committee were advised the service does have the comparative data, which is 
analysed by the Virtual Head, to identify whether there are any trends. Even though 
some children are in placements outside the Barnsley boundary they may attend a 
Barnsley school. Children in placements outside the Barnsley borough are placed in 
Ofsted rated schools that are ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’

XII. If educational attainment has been good within a particular area, would you 
look to place another young person in that area?

Members were advised we go through a rigorous process before we make out of 
area placements and it would be for a specific reason such as specialist care not 
available in our Borough. The main consideration for a placement would be whether 
it was the best thing for the child/young person, not just a placement in relation to 
educational attainment.

XIII. The report identifies a Children’s Residential Establishment within Barnsley, 
whose Ofsted rating within 2 years has gone from ‘Outstanding’ to ‘Good’; is 
there a reason why this happened?

The group were advised this particular home has moved from one area of Barnsley 
to another and the previous rating cannot be transferred to the new location. Ratings 
are also not a like for like comparison as it is indicative of the cohort.

XIV. If Ofsted were to come and inspect our local service now, what would you 
expect the rating to be?                                                                                                                                         

The committee were advised, that since 2014 improvements have been made and 
the Improvement Notice has been lifted. An officer group was brought together to 
drive the improvements and we have a continuous service improvement plan. There 
are still improvements to be made in embedding early help. 

The service commented that it is important for young people to attend scrutiny 
meetings to see how the service they use is cross examined and also the level of 
interest from Councillors. It was also highlighted that over the last 3 years a positive 
change to the CPP has been rather than looking after children in care as part of local 
government, we have taken the stance of approaching the CPP as ‘what would we 
do as a parent’. This has resulted in apprenticeships being put aside for our children 
in care and having celebrations of their achievements. 
  
The Chair thanked the witnesses for their attendance and contribution for this part of 
the meeting, especially the young people representing the Care4Us Council.

16 Barnsley Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 

The Chair welcomed the witnesses to the meeting which included:

 Wendy Lowder, Interim Executive Director, Communities Directorate
 Paul Hussey, Interim Service Director, Stronger, Safer Healthier Communities 

Directorate
 Paul Brannan, Head of Safer Barnsley, Communities Directorate
 Melanie Fitzpatrick, Strategy & Operations Manager, Communities Directorate

Page 6



5

 Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson, Communities Directorate
 Mark Lynam, Head of Economic Development, Place Directorate
 Chief Inspector Jakkie Hardy, South Yorkshire Police
 Inspector Julie Mitchell, South Yorkshire Police

Paul Hussey advised the committee the report had been compiled following a12 
week review of the PSPO. This demonstrates a good example of partnership working 
and is in the broader context of enforcement and behaviour change. Some 
interesting metrics have arisen as a result of early findings; however Members were 
advised due to its infancy to accept these with a degree of caution until further 
intelligence becomes available.

I. Why are there more incidents on a Monday, than any other day of the week?

The committee were advised there have been a number of surprising findings and 
there has not been a quiet day. There can be incidents at any time or day of the 
week, sometimes starting at 8 or 9 o’clock in the morning.

II. Having observed an incident involving someone who was drunk outside the 
Yorkshire Bank in Peel Square at around 4.00pm; what time do the 
Enforcement Officers (EO’s) finish, and have some individuals now recognised 
their patrol patterns?

Members were advised both the Council and Police have dedicated resources to this 
which includes a response team. Their presence cannot be guaranteed at all times of 
the day; however we try to ensure they are at key locations at key times. Yorkshire 
Bank have asked for support therefore the police have put officers on from 7am to 
ensure staff at the bank are not intimidated as they go to work. The EO’s are working 
with businesses so they become familiar with our staff as well as police officers, so 
they know who to contact and this helps to instil confidence as they know there is 
someone they can take their concerns to.

III. Is the proactive approach in actively encouraging retailers to reduce the 
strength of cheap alcohol on sale in the town centre proving to be successful?

The group were advised the service is working with colleagues in Public Health and 
Regulatory Services to ensure retailers are not selling individual cans of high strength 
alcohol. We are working with retailers to do a voluntary ‘reduce the strength’ scheme. 
The response from retailers has generally been good, although there are still some 
who have not been as co-operative; in these cases our colleagues in licensing are 
providing further assistance.

IV. Whilst there has been a vast improvement within the town centre, what is 
being done to ensure we are not merely dispersing these individuals to the 
perimeter of the town, such as to Morrisons, or the new markets car park?

The committee were advised one of the key risks identified with the PSPO was the 
potential of displacement. We have put a lot of focus on areas we know are an issue; 
however there has still been an element of displacement. The size of groups which 
have been displaced are small which has made it easier to manage; however we 
need to be clear of the impact on other local residents.

Page 7



6

V. Are there any patterns to the behaviours of these groups, such as them being 
followed by our EOs and then them going back the area where they were 
displaced from?

Members were advised this is not the case, we have intelligence networks and know 
where they are, but there are no set patterns in their behaviour. If a direction to leave 
is given then those people can’t return to the area for 48 hours. 

VI. The report does not provide information on people who are sleeping rough; 
has the introduction of the PSPO adversely affected ‘rough sleepers’ who may 
have become criminalised as part of this process? What has been done to 
help these people and have there been any success stories?

The group were advised the service employs a ‘connected approach’ to assist 
people, not just enforce or displace them. We work with individuals to sign-post them 
to appropriate support and help; however the service was pleased to advise there 
have been success stories; firstly, someone who had slept rough for many years had 
now found employment with a local employer as well as accommodation. A second 
person who had been sleeping rough for a long time was also working for the same 
local employer and had found secure housing. 

VII. Does the Homeless and Housing Advice team have any information on the 
work being done with these individuals?

Members were advised the Homeless Prevention Plan is being worked on and will 
then be brought to Cabinet. We currently have a triage system regarding help and 
advice and how individuals can get in touch with services. The service also asked 
Members to note a report going through Cabinet regarding a change in the 
commissioning of services for people with multiple and complex needs. This new 
model will provide a better offer for local people. 

VIII. The people being dealt with in the Town Centre have often got multiple 
problems such as addiction to drugs and alcohol and displaying anti-social 
behaviour; how are we dealing with this practically on a day to day basis such 
as literature given to people and training for our officers?

The committee were advised when the PSPO was introduced, they wanted to avoid 
criminalising vulnerable people, who often have complex needs. The services were 
very clear from the start that the teams working in the Town Centre needed a broad 
understanding of relevant issues. Therefore we have done a lot of work with key 
support agencies so that front line officers are able to sign post people to where they 
can obtain additional support such as help with any housing, work or financial issues. 
We have been able to build up an intelligence picture of the people we deal with; this 
helps us create tailored plans and to get underneath individual issues and prevent 
problems. We have got a good approach, there is still more to do and some problems 
will only be solved in the longer term.

IX. To help address underlying issues we appear to have points of contact, and 
‘one to one’ support is being given; is there anything else we could be doing?

  
The group were advised that in reference to the previous answer a strategic 
approach is being used which enables good connectivity in our response. This is 

Page 8



7

providing a better insight into individuals’ circumstances so we can understanding 
what’s happening and how to address the problems.

X. Have you been able to learn from best practice in other areas?

Members were advised the service had looked at the introduction of a PSPO in 
Lincoln town centre, which was used in relation to use of psychoactive substances. 
As the legislation is only 18 months old and relatively new it is difficult to review other 
areas, however anecdotally there has been positive feedback from our businesses in 
the area and the individuals involved.

XI. Has the border of the PSPO had a detrimental effect on its success, as it 
incorporates residential areas which are home to some of the individuals 
responsible for causing the problems? Also, is the reason for the success the 
additional manpower or the PSPO itself?

The committee were advised that during the consultation period the border was 
amended to include Sheffield Road, due to the prevalence of ‘Legal Highs’ being sold 
in this area. However it makes it difficult to move people on when they live in the 
area. Following the PSPO having been operational for 3 months the service is now 
considering a review of this and we may have a central area PSPO regarding 
businesses and a separate one for residential areas, with different terms. As of 1st 
March 2016 we only had the same number of officers however this number has now 
been increased which has helped to address the issues.

XII. Can the current level of resources be maintained?

The group were advised the implementation of the PSPO has been included in the 
Communities Directorate 2020 plan as a cost pressure for the Council and the Police.  
Following the PSPO’s introduction, there has been a positive response from the 
comments posted on social media; therefore we hope to include it as part of the 
financial plan.

A member of the committee commented that we mustn’t let these problems spoil our 
town centre regeneration. 

XIII. How have we learned from best practice across the UK as well as other 
countries?

Members were advised the services recognise there is learning to be gained from 
abroad. For example, with immigration, there are now different cultures living 
together which we need to engage with to ensure there is community cohesion 
across the borough as well as people understanding our laws.

XIV. Have there been examples of these practices in other countries?

The committee were advised that Trading Standards in Belfast have conducted 
investigations into legal highs to understand root causes of problems and we are able 
to benefit from their findings as to ‘what has worked’ and ‘what hasn’t’. When we had 
plenty of resources lots of organisations worked insularly, whereas now we need to 
change ways of working and the culture of staff so that all different agencies can 
work together.

Page 9



8

XV. Are the Voluntary Marshalls being used properly vetted and supervised?

The group were advised that in the early days they considered voluntary provision 
that exists such as street pastors. It is regulated and we need to ensure it fits into our 
overall plans. The detail has not yet been worked out but we are currently working 
with the voluntary sector on their involvement and it will be part of our future plans.

XVI. Will there be support readily available for individuals with mental health 
problems?

Members were advised there have been lengthy discussions with South West 
Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) who deliver mental health 
services in Barnsley, as well as Barnsley Hospital; both of whom have been on board 
with this work. How we speak to individuals and understand their issues is critical to 
our success in this area. We are having ongoing conversations with primary and 
secondary health care services. For some services, individuals can self-refer; 
however some people don’t want to be institutionalised and there are lots of things 
that can be addressed outside these settings.

The committee were advised that this work will form part of the review; also there is a 
new bill regarding policing which will require them to consult with a health 
professional to discuss the right course of action before any statutory powers are 
used so that we can consider other ways of supporting individuals. 

XVII. There is evidence of problems in an evening on Peel Parade and Shambles 
Street with people carrying full bags of alcohol; therefore can you look into this 
please?

The service advised they were aware of some individuals being displaced here, but 
they were not aware of these activities at night; therefore they will look into this.

XVIII. The EOs have been seen walking three abreast; is this the best use of 
resources?

The group were advised, to ensure the safety of these officers they do not work 
alone. Therefore when there are 3 on duty it is better for them to be out together 
rather than not at all.

XIX. A member of the committee advised of an incident on Eldon Street where 
young people were throwing things at cars by the Court House.

Members were advised the services’ resources have been focussed in the Peel 
Square / Market Hill area, where there have been groups of 20-50 year olds. They 
are aware of the other dimension of groups of young people near Eldon Street who 
tend to target other young people rather than adults. However, the services are 
aware of this and in other areas.

XX. One of the key challenges with the current level of resources is ensuring the 
balance of enforcement between the town centre and other areas in the 
borough what are the future plans in relation to this capacity?

Page 10



9

The service advised that they can’t say they have all the resources they need and 
that this will continue in the future. The service advised they will do their best with 
what is available and working with our partners such as the police. We have the 
Leader’s support in relation to this work; however we would need to bring you an 
update on this in due course. 

XXI. How does the service ensure it engages with people properly to tackle anti-
social behaviour rather than just displacing the problem?

The service advised that they recognise the need to understand the causes of 
behaviour and know they need to tackle this long-term and not just displace issues 
elsewhere. 

XXII. Has there been any impact on the town centre redevelopments as a result of 
the European Union (EU) Referendum?

Members were advised the town centre regeneration is underway and is being led by 
Queensberry Estates. There has been no obvious impact and it is business as usual, 
with the building works due to continue until 2019. Problems may come to light when 
Queensbury Estates need to seek £50m investment from the private sector as there 
has been some tightening of investment in the financial market. For now it is 
business as usual however challenges may come to light at the end of this year and 
early next year.

XXIII. The future success of Barnsley relies on there being a thriving and vibrant 
town centre; how integral is the success of the PSPO in this?

The committee were advised the PSPO is critical to this which is why we have cross 
cutting governance arrangements between our enforcement and regeneration teams 
as we are creating a place, not just buildings. If it is not a nice place to visit and we 
don’t address underlying issues, people will not come and spend their money here. 

We have looked at other areas; for example Leeds has a vibrant Town Centre but 
has more problems than Barnsley, however this is masked by the high footfall. This 
doesn’t mean that we want to mask the problems in Barnsley but we hope that the 
more people in the town centre will hide the problem while the issues themselves are 
also being addressed. 

XXIV. What are people using for their highs? Linking with this, while ever there are a 
high number of pubs close together we will not be able to change the 
problems in the town centre; what is being done with our Licensing 
arrangements to tackle this?

The group were advised the geography of pubs in the town centre is similar to that of 
Doncaster, a central street with a large number of pubs, in close proximity of each 
other. We are looking at how psychoactive substances are influencing the younger 
generation in particular. However, retail of New Psychoactive Substances (NPS) 
(Legal Highs) became a criminal offence in May 2016; therefore there are no 
premises in the Borough licensed to trade these substances. The PSPO is one of the 
tools we will use to deal with these problems; there are always changes in legislation 
and licensing that help us also, however we need to ensure we are strict with our 
licensing policies.

Page 11



10

XXV. Has there been any rise in hate crime following the EU Referendum?

Members were advised the most recent figures show there have been more 
incidents, although these are not necessarily associated with anti-social behaviour. It 
is difficult to say whether the increase is due to the EU referendum or whether there 
has been a general increase. We need to undertake more detailed analysis of the 
figures as there has also been increased confidence in reporting incidents. Activity on 
social media sites is also monitored and used as intelligence.

XXVI. There are lots of people using the town centre from a variety of countries; 
could there be instances of hate crimes going unreported?

The committee were advised the service is not picking up any underlying problems in 
relation to hate crime and the EU referendum; however the danger is that 
communities will withdraw. Therefore we need to encourage engagement in relation 
to this, both now and to prevent an impact on engagement in this area in the future.

XXVII. It is good to see the partnership working in the town centre; will this be 
implemented in other town centres?

The group was advised the service had to ensure they acted quickly to address the 
issues as the town centre has the highest profile; however they recognises the 
pressures in other areas. 

The Chair thanked the witnesses for their attendance and contribution for this part of 
the meeting.

17 Draft Safer Barnsley Partnership Plan 2016-2020 

The Chair welcomed the witnesses to the meeting which included:

 Wendy Lowder, Interim Executive Director, Communities Directorate
 Paul Hussey, Interim Service Director, Stronger, Safer Healthier Communities 

Directorate
 Paul Brannan, Head of Safer Barnsley, Communities Directorate
 Melanie Fitzpatrick, Strategy & Operations Manager, Communities Directorate
 Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson-Communities Directorate
 Chief Inspector Jakkie Hardy, South Yorkshire Police
 Inspector Julie Mitchell, South Yorkshire Police

Paul Hussey explained the Council has a duty to undertake an annual assessment 
regarding community safety and produce a community safety plan as well as 
establish domestic homicide reviews. The plan is reflective of cuts to public services, 
however also our strong partnership arrangements and our shared priorities over the 
next 3/4 years, particularly around community tolerance and cohesion. There is also 
a continued focus on crime and anti-social behaviour and protecting vulnerable 
members of our community. We each have separate organisational plans, however 
this partnership plan identifies where we will work together.

Page 12



11

Members proceeded to ask the following questions:
i. Have the issues with the ‘101’ telephone number now been resolved?

The committee were advised the 101 lines are under strain and this is the same for 
999 calls, therefore the services are having to review how they manage their 
emergency response. The South Yorkshire Police call centre is under review and 
they are looking at the recruitment and retention of staff. We are looking at different 
aspects and where we can work together to multi-skill staff and pool resources; of 
which there is a 3-5 year plan for this.

ii. How can we give confidence to people to report crimes without them feeling 
vulnerable to repercussions?

The group were advised to encourage people to report crimes, reassurance can be 
given through the success stories; however this has to be peer-led with those who’ve 
reported crimes encouraging other members of the public to do this also. A lot of 
confidence comes from people knowing their local neighbourhood resource and who 
to contact. We are aware some of this was lost during the Police restructure; 
however we are trying to put some of this back. We are looking at a partnership 
approach to this so that people know about public services and who to contact. 

In relation to our online offer, we are also looking to broaden this. Also, we have 2 
Victim and Witness Support Officers who are able to go out and reassure people and 
there are no obvious signs of who they are.

iii. What are the key challenges for the Community Safety Partnership and what 
plans are in place to address these?

Members were advised there is a reduction in the current levels of policing due to 
austerity. The current model is restrictive; however we are putting plans in place to 
address this. Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) are still used, although 
their numbers have been reduced. We are reviewing their role, including making sure 
people understand this, however they are not a panacea and we still need PCs. Their 
presence provides reassurance and means people express their concerns to them; 
however we are reviewing how we can use them most effectively and increase their 
visibility. We are aware police presence makes a big difference to people and gives 
them increased confidence in services. We need to make sure our service design is 
intelligence-led and there is appropriate distribution of resources. 

iv. Is this a local or national initiative?

The committee were advised this is national, due to the need to realign services 
where resources are stretched due to reduction in budgets. All public services are 
reviewing themselves and the community safety partnership is key to this.

v. To what extent is there effective partnership working and sharing of 
intelligence amongst agencies; how much are Councillors part of this 
partnership; and are all key stakeholders on board and engaged with this 
work?

The group were advised the Safer Barnsley Partnership is a multi-agency 
partnership, including the fire service and the CCG. You need a ‘place’ approach to 

Page 13



12

best target resources and we have buy in from local organisations. It is difficult to 
navigate the policy changes of all the different agencies such as in the NHS, 
including Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs). We also need to feed in 
the geography of Area Councils and Ward Alliances into our plans. Cllr Platts sits on 
the panel alongside other members.

vi. How can Members support the Community Safety Partnership to ensure 
positive outcomes for our local residents, particularly to promote other support 
services in our local areas such as community groups?

Members were advised the partnership needs to know what resources/services are 
available in communities before they go out and commission additional support. This 
work is in progress and Members form a key part of it, therefore Members need to be 
involved in this solution and influence its design.

vii. The service was congratulated on their work to reduce the harm from drugs 
and alcohol in the Borough and enabling people to access treatment. In 
relation to budgets and resources are these adequate and are you working in 
partnership with the Health and Wellbeing Board? Also, what is being done to 
ensure those who have completed treatment programmes are then not 
relapsing?

The service highlighted that Members will be aware of the Cabinet report in relation 
to reduced resources for substance misuse services as a result of funding withdrawn 
by Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). However it is noted that reduced 
resource doesn’t always mean reduced service as we have found that there was 
some duplication of work. Also that some people had been discharged from services 
due to being too difficult to work with who we have picked up as a result of the 
PSPO. There are a number of outreach services available for those following receipt 
of treatment and we hope to strengthen this in our new service model from April 
2017.

viii. There have been reports in the media of assaults on hospital staff by elderly 
dementia patients; have there been incidents in Barnsley?

The Police advised they receive a number of calls following incidents occurring in 
Barnsley Hospital, relating to both the Accident and Emergency department as a 
result of the night time economy as well as in relation to patients with mental health 
problems. Members were advised there is no set pattern they’re aware of in relation 
to older people in mental health acute provision where NHS services manage people 
with severe needs. Also, it is important that we are careful not to criminalise these 
people. The Police advised they frequently review any incidents they have been 
involved in, such as where they have had to restrain someone, with SWYPFT and/or 
Barnsley Hospital so that any relevant changes to policies can be made and so they 
ensure staff are appropriately trained.

The number of admissions to Barnsley Hospital which are alcohol related has seen 
an increase. We are currently in dialogue with the CCG and know we need to 
strengthen the work done by GPs in this area, however plans are underway. In 
relation to substance misuse, we’re in phase 2 of a pilot which NHS England have 
invested in in South Yorkshire regarding providing provision for people in the local 

Page 14



13

community. This work enables the Police to make a straight referrals to mental health 
services.
The Chair thanked the witnesses for their attendance and contribution and declared 
the meeting closed.

Action Points

1. Service to agenda Care Leavers’ Accommodation at a future meeting of the 
CPP.

2. Service to investigate reported issues in an evening on Peel Parade and 
Shambles Street.

3. Service to provide an update on proposed resources regarding community 
safety and the PSPO.

4. Members to be involved in the work of the community safety partnership and 
understanding what resources exist in our communities before the service 
goes out to commission additional resources.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Report of the Director of Human Resources, 
Performance & Communications,

to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
on Tuesday 4th October 2016

South West Yorkshire NHS Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) Inspection Feedback – Cover Report

1.0 Introduction and Background

1.1 The attached report ‘Item 4b’ outlines a summary of the findings from the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) inspection of services delivered by South West 
Yorkshire NHS Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT). SWYPFT provides a 
range of inpatient, community, day clinics and specialist services across Barnsley, 
Calderdale, Kirklees and Wakefield. In Barnsley, this includes the operation of 
services in Kendray Hospital and Mount Vernon Hospital.

1.2 The CQC inspected SWYPFT services as part of their ongoing comprehensive 
mental health inspection programme. Prior to the inspection, the CQC gathered 
feedback from patients and other local organisations such as professional bodies 
and carer groups. An announced inspection took place from 7th-11th March 2016; 
this included visiting wards, teams, clinics as well as looking at a range of policies, 
procedures and other documentation in relation to the running of the services.

1.3 To understand patients’ experience of care, the CQC always ask the following 5 
questions of every service and provider: Is it safe?; Is it effective?; Is it caring?; It 
is responsive to people’s needs?; and is it well lead?. The inspection team 
included a variety of CQC representatives and specialists including consultant 
psychiatrists, health visitors, Mental Health Act reviewers, social workers, 
pharmacists, registered nurses, a psychologist, occupational therapists, senior 
managers, as well as experts by experience who had personal experience of using 
or caring for someone who uses the types of services being inspected. 

1.4 For SWYPFT, being safe, effective, responsive and well-led were rated as 
‘requires improvement’ and being caring was rated as ‘good’. Overall, the Trust 
was rated as ‘requires improvement’ and some areas of outstanding practice were 
noted. Since the completion of the inspection and publication of the reports, 
corrective action has been taken to address the areas of concern including 
creation of an action plan which was submitted to the CQC which is being updated 
on a regular basis and is being scrutinised through SWYPFT’s internal governance 
processes.

1.5 The services inspected are listed on pages 1 and 2 of the attached CQC summary 
report (Item 4b-attached). A summary of the overall ratings are shown on page 3 
and an overview of the ratings for individual services inspected are shown in Item 
4c (attached). Barnsley general community services were all rated as ‘good’ in the 
inspection process. The aspect of the ‘caring’ rating within the trust was 
consistently rated as ‘good’, with community health services for children, young 
people and families and end of life care being highlighted as ‘outstanding’.

Page 17

Item 4a



2

2.0 Invited witnesses

2.1 At today’s meeting, a number of representatives have been invited to answer 
questions from the OSC regarding the inspection of SWYPFT, improvement plans 
in place and future plans:

 Sean Rayner, District Service Director, Barnsley and Wakefield, SWYPFT
 Kate Gorse-Brightmore, Inspection Manager, CQC
 Brigid Reid, Chief Nurse, Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
 Rachel Dickinson, Executive Director, People, BMBC
 Carrie Abbott, Service Director, Public Health, BMBC
 Cllr Jim Andrews, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Spokesperson for Public 

Health, BMBC
 Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson - People (Safeguarding), BMBC

3.0 Possible areas for discussion

3.1 Members may wish to ask questions around the following areas: 

 How effective are performance management arrangements? How will you 
ensure corrective actions are implemented and continue to ensure service 
improvement?

 How will you ensure good practice evident within the trust is shared amongst 
other departments?

 What is in place to ensure effective partnership working with key stakeholders 
to maximise patient outcomes?

 What is done to learn from best practice in other organisations and how is this 
implemented within departments?

 How do you ensure effective patient involvement in services and that this 
influences service design and delivery?

 How effective is the leadership and management within the organisation? To 
what extent are staff confident in this and engaged in improvement work 
including undertaking additional training?

 How confident are you that the right decisions are being made to ensure 
services are safe, effective, caring, responsive and well-lead?

 What is being done to address issues with electronic recording systems both to 
manage patient records as well as provide accurate data on service 
performance such as waiting times? 

 What are the key future challenges for SWYPFT?

 How can Members support the work of SWYPFT to improve outcomes for our 
local residents? 

4.0 Background Papers and Links

Page 18

http://edemocracy.barnsley.gov.uk/edemocracy/meetings/cabinet/delegated-decisions-cabinet-spokesperson-people-safeguarding


3

 Item 4b (attached) – CQC Summary Inspection Report of SWYPFT
 Item 4c (attached) - Overview of CQC ratings for individual services inspected
 Overview of CQC Inspection of SWYPFT: 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RXG
 Full CQC Inspection Report of SWYPFT: 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAF2253.pdf

5.0 Glossary

BMBC – Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group
CQC – Care Quality Commission
SWYPFT – South West Yorkshire NHS Partnership Foundation Trust

6.0 Officer Contact
Anna Morley, Scrutiny Officer (Tel: 01226 775794) 
Email: annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk  Date: 26th September 2016

Page 19

http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RXG
http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAF2253.pdf
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:annamorley@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Core services inspected CQC registered location CQC location ID

Acute wards for adults of working

age and psychiatric intensive care

units

The Dales

Priestley Unit

Fieldhead Hospital

Kendray Hospital

RXGCC

RXGDD

RXG10

RXG82

Wards for older people with mental

health problems

The Dales

Priestley Unit

Fieldhead Hospital

Kendray Hospital

Poplars Community Unit for the

Elderly

RXGCC

RXGDD

RXG10

RXG82

RXG31

Long stay/rehabilitation wards for

working age adults

Enfield Down

Lyndhurst

RXG36

RXG58

Forensic/Inpatient secure wards Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

Wards for people with learning

disabilities or autism
Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

Mental health crisis services and

health based places of safety

Fieldhead Hospital

The Dales

Kendray Hospital

RXG10

RXGCC

RXG82

SouthSouthWestWest YYorkshirorkshiree
PPartnerartnershipship NHSNHS FFoundationoundation
TTrustrust
Quality Report

Fieldhead, Ouchthorpe Lane
Wakefield
West Yorkshire
WF1 3SP
Tel: 01924 327000
Website:www.southwestyorkshire.nhs.uk

Date of inspection visit: 7 March -11 March 2016
Date of publication: 24/06/2016

1 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 21

AnnaM
Typewritten Text
Item 4b



Community based mental health

services for adults of working age
Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

Community based mental health

services for older people
Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

Community mental health services

for people with learning disabilities

or autism

Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

Specialist community mental health

services for children and young

people

Fieldhead Hospital

Castleford and Normanton District

Hospital

RXG10

RXG18

Community end of life care Kendray Hospital

Mount Vernon Hospital

RXG82

RXGX5

Community health services for

children, young people and families
Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

Community health inpatient

services

Kendray Hospital

Mount Vernon Hospital

RXG82

RXGX5

Community health services for

adults
Fieldhead Hospital RXG10

This report describes our judgement of the quality of care at this provider. It is based on a combination of what we

found when we inspected, information from our ‘Intelligent Monitoring’ system, and information given to us from

people who use services, the public and other organisations.

Summary of findings

2 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 22



Ratings

We are introducing ratings as an important element of our new approach to inspection and regulation. Our ratings will

always be based on a combination of what we find at inspection, what people tell us, our Intelligent Monitoring data

and local information from the provider and other organisations. We will award them on a four-point scale: outstanding;

good; requires improvement; or inadequate.

Overall rating for services at this
Provider

Requires improvement –––

Are Mental Health Services safe? Requires improvement –––

Are Mental Health Services e!ective? Requires improvement –––

Are Mental Health Services caring? Good –––

Are Mental Health Services responsive? Requires improvement –––

Are Mental Health Services well-led? Requires improvement –––

Mental Health Act responsibilities and Mental

Capacity Act/Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

We include our assessment of the provider’s compliance

with the Mental Health Act and Mental Capacity Act in our

overall inspection of the core service.

We do not give a rating for Mental Health Act or Mental

Capacity Act; however, we do use our findings to

determine the overall rating for the service.

Further information about findings in relation to the

Mental Health Act and Mental Capacity Act can be found

later in this report.

Summary of findings

3 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 23



Contents

PageSummary of this inspection
Overall summary                                                                                                                                                                                           5

The five questions we ask about the services and what we found                                                                                             7

Our inspection team                                                                                                                                                                                  16

How and why we carried out this inspection                                                                                                                                    16

Information about the provider                                                                                                                                                             17

What people who use the provider's services say                                                                                                                           17

Good practice                                                                                                                                                                                               18

Areas for improvement                                                                                                                                                                             21

Detailed findings from this inspection
Findings by our five questions                                                                                                                                                                38

Findings by our five questions                                                                                                                                                                  0

Summary of findings

4 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 24



Overall summary

When aggregating ratings, our inspection teams follow a

set of principles to ensure consistent decisions. The

principles will normally apply but will be balanced by

inspection teams using their discretion and professional

judgement in the light of all of the available evidence.

We found that the provider was performing at a level

which led to a rating of requires improvement. We will be

working with the trust to agree an action plan to assist

them in improving the standards of care and treatment.

We rated the trust as requires improvement overall

because:

• Sta ing levels in some of the inpatient areas did not

always meet the safer sta ing levels set by the trust.

This adversely impacted on activities, escorted leave

and potentially patient and sta safety. We also

found some patients were waiting a long time for a

service, this was especially so in specialist

community mental health services for children and

young people and psychology therapy services. The

waiting lists were also not being appropriately

managed which could lead to escalation in patient

risk not being recognised.

• Risk assessment andmanagement were inconsistent

across the trust. Sta did not always assess patient

risk in line with the trust’s policy. Sta did not always

update the assessment in a timely manner when

patient condition and presentation changed and

risks were identified. Sta did not always share

information regarding risk with other parts of the

service. There were also environmental risks in some

inpatient areas that had not been adequately

managed by the trust.

• Physical health monitoring across the services was

inconsistent. This was especially so where physical

health monitoring was necessary in relation to

specific medication and its use in long stay and

rehabilitation and acute and psychiatric intensive

care wards.

• Mental Health Act (MHA) and Mental Capacity Act

(MCA) training was not mandatory for the trust sta 

and there was no overall board knowledge or

overview of what training was being delivered or to

which sta . Training was arranged and delivered

locally and we found some areas where sta 

knowledge of the legislation in practice was very

good. Unfortunately, we also found some areas

where the sta knowledge of legislation in practice

was very poor.

• Alongside the training for the MHA, we found that the

trust had not implemented the changes to the 2015

MHA code of practice in the organisation. There were

policies and procedures that had not been updated

to meet the requirement of the 2015 code and the

changes had not been actioned in practice. This

meant that there was no assurance that patients and

their carer’s rights were protected.

• Whilst there was overview of sta appraisal in the

trust there was no overview of managerial or clinical

supervision for sta . We saw examples of supervision

at a local level on an individual and group basis.

However, this was not consistent across the trust and

there were areas where supervision was not being

held for a considerable period.

• The trust’s electronic recording system, RIO, had

been recently upgraded and di erent services across

the trust were at various levels of implementation.

Most services were finding it di icult to use the

system e ectively with areas needing to find their

own solutions to the problems they were

encountering. The di iculties were due to the system

being slow to load and use information, a mixture of

paper based and electronic records at various levels

of development and di erent groups and disciplines

or sta using di erent systems. Whilst some areas

had developed their own solutions to problems with

health records the inconsistency across the trust le!

risks to patient care and service delivery.

• There was a lack of assurance that the governance

structures in place were e ective across the

organisation. Senior sta presented information to

the board through governance meetings. We found

that policies and procedures agreed at the board

were not always consistent at a local level. Practice

such as medication management, management of

environmental risks across services and wards,

Summary of findings

5 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 25



monitoring andmanagement of waiting lists, data

quality to inform performance and the use of

electronic and paper based health records were all

found to be inconsistent. Some of the practice we

saw in these areas was e ective and sta had

worked hard to provide a good service. However,

there was potential for the board not to be aware of

the quality of practice delivered by frontline sta due

to the governance structure. This was especially

evident in Enfield Down, one of the long stay

rehabilitation wards, where the governance system

had not identified failings in the service.

• The board approved the fit and proper person’s

policy on 31 March 2015; this details the trust’s

responsibilities and states that the trust will ensure

that it has procedures in place to assess an

individual against the fit and proper person’s

requirements for all the new directors, prior to their

appointment. Three of the new non-executive

directors had not had Disclosure and Barring Service

checks in line with the fit and proper person

requirement, which came into force for NHS bodies

on the 1 October 2014. This meant the trust was not

complying with its policy or this requirement.

However:

• Consistently across the service, we found good

communication between sta and patients and sta 

treating patients with kindness, dignity, compassion

and respect. This was supported by comments from

patients who were positive about the care and

treatment they received from services. There were

also good examples of patient and carer

involvement in their care.

• Sta uptake of mandatory training was above the

trust standard of 80% in the majority of inpatient

areas.

• We saw examples of good practice across the

organisation and areas where sta had developed

aspects of their service. There was proactive

management across the trust, o!en in a challenging

environment. We saw some areas of notable practice

across areas of the trust, which are detailed within

the report. These include; navigation / tele health

service; adult epilepsy service; commitment to

working collaboratively; ADHD service and prison in-

reach; production of easy read cook books;

community eating disorder pathway; falls audit and

change to practice.

• The trust had a clear structure and governance in

place for the reporting of safeguarding incidents

from the ward to the board via a number of di erent

groups. Sta followed the incident reporting,

complaints and safeguarding procedures, across the

services, including duty of candour. Sta described

instances where they had received feedback

following learning from incidents and we observed

evidence of lessons learnt from board to ward in the

almost all services. There were named safeguarding

nurses andmandatory safeguarding training. Sta 

were able to explain their responsibilities and local

referral procedures for safeguarding.

• The trust had a clear strategy, which established its

long-term vision and strategic goals, underpinned by

the values of the organisation. The trust had worked

closely with its stakeholders to develop these values.

The values were embedded in the business delivery

units and reflected in the sta behaviours we observed

during our inspection. The introduction of the trio of

managers, comprising a general manager, a clinical

lead and a practice governance coach, in the service

lines in each business delivery unit had improved the

service delivery, the sta understanding of the

transformation programme, and sta morale.

Summary of findings

6 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 26



The five questions we ask about the services and what we found

We always ask the following five questions of the services.

Are services safe?

We rated safe as requires improvement because:

• Wards on both the inpatient wards for older people with mental

health problems and the acute wards for adults of working age

with mental health problems had areas where sta were unable

to observe patients (blind spots), as well as ligature risks that

were not identified on the ward ligature risk assessment.

• The sta ing levels in the acute services for adults of working

age, as well as the psychiatric intensive care unit, in the forensic

services did not always meet the trust safer sta ing levels set by

the trust on all wards. This impacted adversely on activities,

escorted leave, and potentially patient and sta safety.

• Risk assessments were not always completed in line with trust

policies or procedures. In five of six records reviewed on ward

18 of the Priestly Unit, there were no plans in place to manage

patient risk. In the community specialist child and adolescent

mental health services, all patient records reviewed had

incomplete risk assessments or risk assessments not using the

risk assessment tool. There was no proactive monitoring of

people on the waiting list for treatment or system to monitor

changes to risk. At Enfield Down, one of the long stay and

rehabilitation wards, the risk assessments were completed

prior to admission by the care coordinator in the community.

They reviewed and updated at six monthly care programme

approach (CPA) meetings by the external care coordinator.

• The data collected by the trust regarding the use of restraint,

including prone or face down restraint, seclusion and long-term

segregation was not accurate, or recorded in su icient detail to

ensure patients were safeguarded.

• Medicines were not always well managed in the mental health

services. On the wards for patients with learning disabilities or

autism, missed doses of medication had not been reported on

the incident reporting system. Medicine management in the

Enfield Down service was not applied in line with the national

institute of care and health excellence (medicine optimisation

2015, and psychosis and schizophrenia in adult 2014) and best

practice guidance. On the acute wards for adults of working age

with mental health problems, we saw no evidence that high

dose monitoring was routinely carried out, despite pharmacists

noting on charts that it should be done.

Requires improvement –––

Summary of findings

7 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 27



• The written apology sent to patients, relatives and carers

following serious incidents was not always clear. The trust did

not always explicitly comply with the requirements of

regulation 20 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (regulated

activities) regulations 2014, duty of candour. The written details

of the investigation into the incident, and the findings, were not

always sent to the patients, relative or carer.

However:

• In the Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment (PLACE)

2015 results, both the trust wide and location level scores were

above the average for all NHS trusts with regards to cleanliness,

food, privacy, dignity and wellbeing, condition appearance and

maintenance and dementia.

• All the wards and community services we visited for patients

with mental health problems had fully equipped clinic rooms

with accessible resuscitation equipment and emergency drugs.

All the inpatient complied with same sex accommodation

guidance as defined in the Department of Health guidance for

eliminating mixed sex accommodation.

• Mandatory training was above the Trusts target of 80%.

• The NHS Sta Survey 2015 reported that the percentage of sta 

su ering work-related stress in last 12 months at the trust was

better than to the national average in comparison to other

mental health and learning disability trusts.

• We found little evidence of blanket restrictions on the mental

health inpatient wards. The trust was committed to reducing

restrictive practices and this was identified within the policy.

• Medicines were generally well managed in the community

health services.

• The trust had a clear structure in place for the reporting of

safeguarding incidents from the ward to the board via a

number of di erent groups. There were named safeguarding

nurses andmandatory safeguarding training. Sta were able to

explain their responsibilities and local referral procedures for

safeguarding.

• Sta had a good understanding of the incident reporting

procedure. The sta we spoke to at both ward level and board

level confirmed that they received feedback and learning from

incidents.

The board had identified the strategic risks, which might a ect

business and had developed a board assurance framework.

Summary of findings

8 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 28



Are services e ective?

We rated e ective as requires improvement because:

• There were issues in all the community mental health services

for sta with regard to recording keeping and using the RIO

electronic recording system. Sta were unable to upload and

save information in some services, and were unable to access

the system and retrieve this information when required. Some

services did not have the necessary templates for their

treatment on the system.

• Sta on the acute wards for adults of working age, and the

psychiatric intensive care unit, had not received either clinical

or managerial supervision for some considerable time, in some

cases this was over 12 months. The trust had no system in place

to monitor clinical supervision meetings.

• At the long stay and rehabilitation service, Enfield Down,

patients did not have regular multidisciplinary meetings.

• Mental Health Act training, including the 2015 code of practice

and it implications for sta delivering care, was not mandatory

across the trust. The trust did not have an overall

implementation plan for the 2015 MHA code of practice.

• Mental Capacity Act (2005) training was not mandatory across

the trust. Policies had not been reviewed and guidance

documents had details missing, including author, version and

date of publication. There was no clear mechanism for the trust

to monitor its compliance with the Mental Capacity Act or the

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards across the organisation. The

Mental Capacity Act was not consistently understood on the

acute wards for working age adults and psychiatric intensive

care units. On these wards, capacity assessments with regard to

consent to treatment were missing from care plans and the

best interest process was not always followed.

However:

• Care and treatment was delivered in-line with current, evidence

based guidance, standards and best practice in community

health services. Patients’ needs were assessed and appropriate

care plans were developed.

• Patient outcomes were monitored through participation in

local and national audits.

• There was good evidence of communication between the

professionals involved in providing care and treatment to

patients through structured handovers andmulti-disciplinary

meetings to plan patient care.

Requires improvement –––

Summary of findings

9 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 29



• The core services had a range of disciplines appropriate to the

needs of the patient group. Sta had access to mandatory

training and specialist training for their personal and

professional development and to enhance skills available in the

team.

• Independent mental health advocates were available for each

ward across the trust services.

Are services caring?

We rated caring as good because:

• In services across the trust, we observed patients and their

relatives being treated with kindness, dignity, compassions and

respect.

• We observed examples of good communication between sta 

and patients in all the services, both when they were

supporting patients, and when they were avoiding or de-

escalating challenging situations.

• The mental health wards and community services we visited

used a variety of person-centred methods to orientate the

patients to the service.

• Most of the patients, carers and parents we spoke to made

positive comments about the care and treatment they received

from services. They told us they were involved in planning their

treatment and care.

• On almost all wards, the majority of the care plans were holistic

and individually tailored to the patient. They demonstrated that

patients had been involved in co-producing their care plans.

However:

• On the forensic mental health inpatient wards, 44% of the care

planning records observed did not contain evidence of patient

involvement.

Good –––

Are services responsive to people's needs?

We rated responsive as requires improvement because:

• Some of the mental health wards had very high levels of bed

occupancy. In some cases, this had an adverse impact on the

quality of care. On the acute wards for adults of working age

with mental health problems, a bed was not always available

for patients when they returned from leave. This meant that

patients could be transferred to a hospital out of area, or

patients would return to the ward and have to sleep in rooms

Requires improvement –––

Summary of findings

10 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 30



other than bedrooms, for example, visitor rooms or interview

rooms where beds had been provided. Ward managers told us

this was in line with the trust’s policy to keep patients safe.

There were 44 out of area placements in the 6 months before

this inspection. For the acute mental health wards alone, there

were 37 out of area placements in the last six months.

• Patients had to wait a long time to be assessed or treated by

some of the trust’s community –based services. The trust failed

to meet two of the 10 targets regarding the number of days

from initial referral to initial assessment in the last 12 months.

One of these missed targets was in the Calderdale and Kirklees

children and adolescent mental health community team. The

national target from referral to initial assessment is 28 days. The

trust was completing this in an average (mean) of 41 days.

Waiting times for treatment following assessment were long

with the average wait being 147 days and the longest wait 913

days. This meant in Calderdale and Kirklees young people were

waiting on average four and a half months for treatment and in

Wakefield six months. Figures were not available for the

Barnsley specialist child and adolescent mental health service.

The wait times from referral to assessment for community

mental health services for older adults, showed that three of

the four locations we visited as part of our inspection were not

meeting national targets. The longest wait of 78 days was

recorded at North Kirklees Community Mental Health Team.

The community mental health services all reported long waits

for patients in some parts of the trust to access psychological

therapies.

• Not all of the trust’s facilities promoted recovery, comfort and

dignity. The Kirklees outreach teamwas di icult to locate, as

the building was part of a site that also housed a bingo hall.

There was no signage to direct people from the car park to the

building. However, people would normally be provided with a

map to assist them with locating the service. Environments in

the community services for older adults with mental health

problems were not dementia friendly. In the Barnsley team,

sta reported the building to have a leaking roof, and the

building was old and in need of decoration. This had been

reported but repairs had not been carried out at the time of our

inspection. These problems did not impact on patient care.

• In two of the bases for the specialist community mental health

services for children and adolescents, the weighing scales were

in a public area not a private clinical room. This did not

promote privacy and dignity for the young person. On the acute

wards for adults of working age with mental health problems,

Summary of findings

11 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 31



the provision of activities at weekends was variable, with only

two out of the nine wards having pre-planned activities

advertised at the weekend. Similarly, on the forensic services,

activities were limited at weekends. Patients on both the acute

and forensic wards complained that there were insu icient

activities and that they wanted more.

However:

• The target set for trusts is that 90% of patients in crisis must be

assessed within four hours a!er a referral has been made. All

four teams achieved higher than the national average.

Calderdale, Kirklees and Wakefield met this target in 93% of

cases during January to December 2015. In the same period

Barnsley achieved 98%.

• Most of the environments were spacious, pleasantly decorated

and calming in the majority of services.

• Services were accessible for people with disabilities and o ered

an environment conducive for mental health recovery. These

environments were adapted to appropriate mental health

conditions. For example low stimulus rooms and sensory areas

for patients with learning disabilities or autism. There was also

dementia friendly signage which incorporated words and

pictures at a visible height so that patients could find their way

aroundmore easily on the inpatient wards for older age adults

with mental health problems. On one of these wards, Willow

Ward, there were signs in braille on all the doors so that

patients who were visually impaired could find their way round

the ward.

• Patients’ cultural, spiritual and faith needs were met in all the

services across the trust. On the inpatient wards, the trust had

access to religious leaders of di erent denominations through

the chaplaincy service who were able to attend the ward to see

patients. Informal patients or those with section 17 leave on

inpatient wards and patients in community services were

encouraged to visit their usual chosen place of faith.

• Patients we spoke to knew how to make a complaint about the

services they received. Sta were able to describe how

complaints were dealt with, including their responsibilities

under duty of candour.

Are services well-led?

We rated well-led as requires improvement because:
Requires improvement –––

Summary of findings

12 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 32



• Whilst the governance structures were in place, there was a lack

of assurance regarding the information being presented to the

board by the senior management team through governance

meetings. Systems and processes agreed between the board

and the senior management team were not always consistent

at a local level. In the long stay and rehabilitation service, the

governance structures in place to monitor and improve services

were insu icient.

• The systems to monitor the implementation and compliance of

the Mental Health Act (2015) code of practice and the Mental

Capacity Act (2005) and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards were

insu icient. The board did not understand the quantity, or the

quality and content, of the training being delivered.

• The implementation of the action plan regarding the use of the

RIO information system was inconsistent across some wards

and community services, with some services using paper

records along with the electronic system. Sta could not always

access the patient information and the systems in place to

manage this were not consistent across the trust.

• The trust could not provide accurate data relating to waiting

times in the specialist community child and adolescent mental

health services, wait times to access psychology from this

service and caseloads. They could not be confident that data

input in to the system prior to April 2015 was accurate. This

a ected the data available for Barnsley in particular. The

current systems and processes were not adequate to manage

the waiting list for patients to access the child and adolescent

mental health services, or the waiting lists for patients in the

community mental health services to access psychological

therapies, as well as the risks for the patients whilst on these

waiting lists.

• A number of trust policies and procedures exceeded their

stated review dates and revised policies were not available, for

example the risk management procedure and policies related

to the revised code of practice.

• The trust were unable to monitor the outcomes for patients in

the community learning disability and autism services. These

teams who were co-located within local authority teams did

not report their performance formally to the trust.

• The systems to manage medication across the trust were not

applied consistently. In the acute inpatient wards for working

Summary of findings

13 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 33



age adults with mental health problems and in the long stay

and rehabilitation inpatient wards for people with mental

health problems, the systems were not e ective for monitoring

medication

• There were inconsistencies in the systems for managing the

environmental risks across services and wards, including the

blind spots and ligature risks identified on the wards for older

adults with mental health problems and the acute wards for

adults of working age with mental health problems.

• The trust did not meet the fit and proper persons’ requirements

for their directors and non-executive directors.

• Sta were not familiar with the senior managers in-between the

trio of managers responsible for their service line and the chief

executive, as well the non-executive directors.

• There was a lack of awareness of board level representation

among sta in community services for children and young

people.

However:

• The trust had a clear strategy, which established its long term

vision and strategic goals, underpinned by the values of the

organisation. The trust had worked closely with its stakeholders

to develop these values and they were embedded in the

business delivery units and reflected in the sta behaviours we

observed during our inspection.

• The introduction of the trio of managers, including a general

manager, a clinical lead and a practice governance coach, in

the service lines in each business delivery unit between had

improved the service delivery, the sta understanding of the

transformation programme, and sta morale.

• Sta followed the incident reporting, complaints and

safeguarding procedures, across the services, including duty of

candour. We observed evidence of lessons learnt from board to

ward in the almost all services.

• The trust key performance indicators were used to measure

performance in all but the community learning disability and

autism service, including the use of clinical audits. Team

managers had access to an electronic dashboard called the

work performance wall.

Summary of findings

14 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 34



• In the child and adolescent community mental health service,

the senior management team worked closely with the local

authority and clinical commissioning groups within their areas.

Performance and service developments were reviewed, and

actions agreed in regular monthly forums.

• The trust was high performing on its quality priority to listen

and act on patient feedback to continually improve the patient

experience of their services, achieving over 75% of the target

they set themselves.

Summary of findings

15 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 35



Our inspection team

Our inspection team was led by:

Chair: Peter Jarrett, Retired Medical Director

Head of Hospital Inspection: Jenny Wilkes, CQC

Team Leaders: Chris Watson, Inspection Manager, mental

health services, CQC

Berry Rose, Inspection Manager, community health

services, CQC

The team included CQC inspectors and a variety of

specialists: experts by experience who had personal

experience of using or caring for someone who uses the

type of services we were inspecting, consultant

psychiatrists, health visitors, Mental Health Act reviewers,

social workers, pharmacists, registered nurses (general,

mental health and learning disability nurses), a

psychologist, occupational therapists and senior

managers.

Why we carried out this inspection

We inspected this core service as part of our ongoing

comprehensive mental health inspection programme.

How we carried out this inspection

To get to the heart of the experience of people who use

services, we always ask the following five questions of

every service and provider:

• Is it safe?

• Is it e ective?

• Is it caring?

• Is it responsive to people’s needs?

• Is it well-led?

Before the inspection visit the inspection team:

• Requested information from the trust and reviewed

the information we received.

• Asked a range of other organisations for information

including Monitor, NHS England, clinical

commissioning groups, Healthwatch, Health

Education England, Royal College of Psychiatrists,

other professional bodies and user and carer groups.

• Sought feedback from patients and carers through

attending more than10 detained patient and carer

groups andmeetings.

• Received information from patients, carers and other

groups through our website.

During the announced inspection visit from the 7 March to

11 March 2016 the inspection team:

• Visited 70 wards, teams and clinics.

• Spoke with over 225 patients and 49 relatives and

carers who were using the service.

• Collected feedback from 676 patients, carers and sta 

using comment cards.

• Joined more than 15 service user meetings.

• Spoke with more than 50 ward and teammanagers

and 485 sta members.

• Attendedmore than 45 focus groups attended by sta .

• Interviewed over 55 senior sta and board members.

• Attended and observed 24 hand-over meetings and

multi-disciplinary meetings.

• Joined care professionals for 34 home visits and clinic

appointments.

• Looked at over 326 treatment records of patients.

• Carried out a specific check of the medication

management across a sample of wards and teams.

• Looked at a range of policies, procedures and other

documents relating to the running of the service.

• Requested and analysed further information from the

trust to clarify what was found during the site visits.

Observed a board development meeting.

Summary of findings

16 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 36



Information about the provider

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

provides services across Barnsley, Calderdale, Kirklees and

Wakefield to a population of more than one million people.

The trust provides inpatient, community and day clinics as

well as specialist services within West Yorkshire, and also to

a wider geographical area in some of their specialist

services.

The trust provide the following core services:

• Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric

intensive care units.

• Long stay/rehabilitation mental health wards for

working age adults.

• Forensic inpatient/secure wards.

• Wards for older people with mental health problems.

• Wards for people with learning disabilities or autism.

• Community-based mental health services for adults of

working age.

• Mental health crisis services and health-based places

of safety.

• Specialist community mental health services for

children and young people.

• Community-based mental health services for older

people.

• Community mental health services for people with

learning disabilities or autism.

• Community health inpatient services.

• Community end of life care.

• Community health services for adults.

• Community health services for children, young people

and families.

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

has 11 registered locations serving mental health and

learning disability needs, including four hospitals sites:

Castleford Normanton and District Hospital, Fieldhead

Hospital, Kendray Hospital and Mount Vernon Hospital. It

also provides community health services at 38 locations.

The trust advised that 8 Fox View, Saville Close and Castle

Lodge were temporarily (long term) closed to admissions

and would remain so for the foreseeable future.

The trust was formed in 2002 and employs more than 4,700

sta , in both clinical and non-clinical support services. In

the last financial year 2014/15, the trust’s income was

£237.7 million with an expenditure of £231.9 million.

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

has been inspected 15 times since registration with five

locations inspected.

We have previously issued nine compliance actions against

two locations with an additional 12 improvement actions.

At the time of our inspection, Fieldhead Hospital was non-

compliant in relation to regulation 11 - safeguarding

people who use services from abuse and regulation 15 -

safety and suitability of premises. During this inspection,

we found that the trust had met the outstanding

compliance actions.

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

has had 17 Mental Health Act reviewer visits between 06

January 2015 and 06 January 2016. The main issue

highlighted was that capacity and consent were not always

considered or documented. This was found on 14

occasions. Six of these instances occurred at Fieldhead

Hospital. The next most common issue was that patients

were not always advised or aware of their legal rights. This

was found on nine occasions.

What people who use the provider's services say

We received 676 comment cards from people who use the

services. Of these comment cards the majority (65%)

contained positive comments regarding the service. The

remaining cards were mixed in their comments (8%) or

contained negative comments regarding the service

provided (14%). Some comments were le! blank or were

unclear.

We received most comments frommental health forensic

inpatient/secure wards (25%) and acute wards and

psychiatric intensive care units (22%). The lowest number

of comment cards was from crisis and health based place

of safety (0.5%).

Themes from positive comment cards and the phrases

used:

Summary of findings

17 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 37



• Sta attitude – caring, respectful, friendly, and

supportive.

• Environment – clean, safe, very good, stress free.

• Service – e ective, great, caring, helpful.

• Treatment - treated with dignity and care, great, good

information provided.

Negative comments included:

• Certain nurses don’t listen.

• Access for disabled sometimes di icult.

• Not enough sta .

• Patients should be allowed to smoke.

• Food could be improved.

In community health services almost all patient and carers

we spoke to were positive about the service they received.

Patients and carers told us that sta were professional,

respectful and supportive of their needs. Feedback from

patients and carers was particularly positive in services for

children and young people.

Wemet with patients who were detained under the Mental

Health Act (1983) and their carers individually and in

groups. Feedback from these patients and carers was

mainly positive regarding the care they received and the

environment they were in. They felt involved in care

planning, decisions and listened to. However, some

patients commented that there were not enough activities

on the ward due to sta ing and sometimes rights were not

explained to patients.

During the inspection we spoke with patients and their

carers about the care they received most feedback was

positive and sta were described as caring, supportive, and

willing to listen. They felt sta made time for patients and

were involved in care decisions. Patients generally said they

felt safe but that there were occasions where when they felt

threatened by other patients. We also received some

negative feedback regarding some services. This included:

• There were a lot of agency nurses on the wards.

• Sta did not always respond to people’s concerns

quickly enough.

• Waiting times for some therapies and treatment was

sometimes long.

The friends and family test for South West Yorkshire

Partnership Foundation Trust showed that 79% of people

who used the services were likely or extremely likely to

recommend the service. 6% said they were unlikely or

extremely unlikely to recommend the service.

Good practice

Community-based mental health services for adults of

working age.

• The attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) and

autism service had been involved in several

innovations. The team had been involved in the

development of the ADHD star. The ADHD star was an

assessment and care planning tool for individuals with

ADHD. The service had also developed a checklist to

ensure environments were appropriate for individuals

with autism.

• The team had worked with prison and probation

services to improve the screening of ADHD for

individuals within those environments.

Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric

intensive care units.

• A member of sta from Trinity 1 psychiatric intensive

care unit (PICU) had introduced ‘my mental health’

and ‘my physical health’ booklets. Patients were able

to go through these booklets with sta and give their

views and input in relation to what support they

needed with their physical and mental health. These

booklets had then been shared with the other acute

and PICU wards.

• Patients were able to attend ‘recovery college’, which

works in partnership with volunteers and other

supporting organisations to run a range of workshops

and courses which promote well-being and good

mental health.

• The trust had implemented Creative Minds, which is a

strategy that develops community partnerships and

co-funds creative projects across South West Yorkshire

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s localities in

Barnsley, Calderdale, Kirklees, and Wakefield. It utilises

Summary of findings

18 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 38



creative activities such as arts, sports, recreation and

leisure, delivered in partnership with local community

organisations to increase the confidence, develop the

social skills, and improve the lives of people.

Wards for older people with mental health problems.

• On Willows Ward a falls audit was undertaken by the

ward manager. This identified that higher levels of falls

happened in patient bed areas and bathrooms. It was

also identified that nearly all patients who had fallen

were found by sta and not by use of nurse call

buttons. Following this audit nurse call strips were

installed in each bedroom and bathroom at floor level

so patients could alert sta if they had fallen without

having to attempt to stand with a potential injury.

• Sta at The Poplars had developed an easy read rights

leaflet for dementia patients which was simplified

using short direct sentences with the addition of

pictures to clarify key points.

• On all wards there were dementia friendly

improvements that had beenmade. This included

dementia friendly signage and use of colours

identified as easy to see for people with cognitive

impairment. On Beechdale ward the trust had secured

funding from the Kings Fund to significantly improve

the environment for people with dementia. This

included a “rempod” which is a pop up reminiscence

room that works by turning any care space into a

therapeutic & calming environment.

Specialist community mental health services for children

and young people.

• People who used the service with a serious eating

disorder, who ordinarily would have been admitted to

inpatient care, were receiving home support during

breakfast and evening meal times. This was from the

sta providing the crisis response within the service.

• Each of the teams provided crisis support at home for

children and young people when required.

Community mental health services for people with learning

disabilities or autism.

• We spoke to one member of sta who told us of their

journey from receiving support from the service,

through to gaining employment and their discharge

from the service. They told us this would not have

been possible without the support the service had

provided.

• We were shown a range of ‘cook and eat’ easy read

cook books. A member of sta had co-produced the

books with a group of patient consultants. The cook

books were designed to help people with a learning

disability cook independently and were used within

therapy sessions to support people develop

confidence and independence.

Community end of life care.

• The palliative care team were runners up in the 2015

International Journal of Palliative Nursing

Multidisciplinary Teamwork Award for their oral

hygiene steering group.

• The continuing development of sta skills,

competence and knowledge was seen as a priority and

the service had developed a range of comprehensive

training courses for sta at all levels.

• Sta we spoke with in the community and on the

wards of the community hospitals demonstrated a

consistently high knowledge of end of life care issues.

• The palliative care team was multi-disciplinary with

medical, nursing, social work, occupational therapy,

physiotherapy and dietetic membership. Sta , teams

and services were committed to working

collaboratively and found innovative and e icient

ways to deliver more joined up care to people who use

the service.

• The end of life care lead for the trust was also the end

of life care lead for the Barnsley locality. This meant

that the trust had a significant role in contributing to

the shaping of end of life care services. We saw

evidence of this in representative membership on

locality groups including co-chair for the end of life

care steering group.

• The supportive care at home service which was

managed by the trust recorded the preferred place of

care on the end of life care plan and 84% of patients

known to the Specialist Palliative Care Team achieved

their preferred place of care at the end of life. Where

preferred place of care was not achieved the reasons

for this were explored and lessons were learnt.

Summary of findings

19 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 39



• The end of life/specialist palliative care team had

worked with learning disability services to develop a

more creative approach to communication with

patients around advance care planning at the end of

life.

• A volunteer service had been developed and based

with the team to support the community palliative

care service to obtain independent service user

feedback in the form of telephone surveys.

Community health services for adults.

• The service had developed a drop-in mobility clinic for

patients with mobility and falls issues. The clinic had

been extended to cope with increased demand.

Patients attending were screened for falls and follow

up assessments were arranged if required.

• The care navigation / tele health service linked with

other community services in promoting patient self-

management of long term conditions. The care

navigation service provided signposting, referral,

advice and support for patients following a crisis. The

service provided ongoing coaching and support to

promote self-management for patients with long term

conditions. Health coaching was linked, for example,

to weight management. The service could

demonstrate its e ectiveness in preventing hospital

admissions.

• The stop smoking service o ered access via both

telephone and instant messaging support. It had also

developed an online portal where patients could

register and undertake their own stop smoking

journey.

• The tissue viability service managed the incidence of

pressure ulcers proactively and it had developed an

action plan for 2016/2017 in response to the incidence

of pressure ulcers. The action plan included identifying

care homes with an increased risk of pressure sores

and delivering training to identified care homes as a

pilot of the “react to red” skin initiative. The tissue

viability service used a wound care formulary and

followed agreed protocols.

• The adult epilepsy service had well developed links

with the emergency department of the local hospital

and held a weekly referral meeting to review

emergency admissions. The service maintained similar

links with the ambulance service to review patients

with an established diagnosis of epilepsy. The adult

epilepsy service provided a series of two to three

education and guidance sessions to inform patients

and their carers in residential care homes.

Community health services for children, young people and

families.

• We reviewed evidence within the 0-19 service which

showed outstanding support processes for women

and children at risk of female genital mutilation. We

also observed exceptional support and recognition for

a young carer.

• We observed the school nursing service provide

exceptional support for young girls during a

vaccination clinic by providing alternative clothing to

protect their privacy and dignity if they were unable to

roll up their sleeves so that sta could administer the

vaccination.

• The work the paediatric epilepsy team were

undertaking to develop the epilepsy passport and

sudden unexpected death in epilepsy work. We

observed excellent support for children and young

people during our inspection and this was

corroborated by other teams we spoke with.

• The Theratots programme which was developed by

the children’s therapy team. This programme included

links with portage services and supported parents with

children with complex learning needs.

• We received consistent positive feedback from parents

regarding the care they have received during our

inspection; this was further corroborated when

reviewing the friends and family data.

• We observed exceptional resilience of sta in the 0-19

service and family nurse partnership during our

inspection. All sta were positive about the service

they provided, which was commendable in light of the

uncertainty about the future of the 0-19 service.

Summary of findings

20 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 40



Areas for improvement

Action the provider MUST take to improve

Trust-wide

• The trust must ensure that non-executive directors

have checks with the disclosure and barring service in

line with the fit and proper person requirement, which

came into force for NHS bodies on the 1 October 2014.

• The trust must ensure that Mental Health Act and

Mental Capacity Act training is mandatory for specified

members of sta and that this is monitored for

e ectiveness by senior management of the trust.

• The trust must ensure the 2015 MHA code of practice is

implemented across all services of the trust.

• The trust must ensure care records are up to date and

accessible in order to deliver people’s care and

treatment in a way that meets their needs and keeps

them safe.

Community mental health services for adults of a working

age

• The trust must ensure equitable and timely access to

psychological therapies.

Community mental health services for people with learning

disabilities or autism

• The provider must ensure timely access to

psychological therapies.

• The trust must ensure systems and processes are in

place to monitor the quality and safety of services

integrated with local authority services.

Wards for older people with mental health problems

• The trust must ensure that there are clear lines of sight

on The Poplars, ward 19 and Chantry Unit.

• The trust must review the door handles on ward 19 to

ensure that the premises suit the need of patients.

Long stay/rehabilitation mental health wards for working

age adults

• The trust must ensure that risk assessments are

completed on admission and updated at regular

intervals in addition to being updated following

incidents and changes in presentation.

• The trust must ensure that patients who are

prescribed high dose antipsychotic medication are

subject to physical health monitoring including

electrocardiograms in line with national guidance.

• The trust must ensure that patients have regular

multidisciplinary reviewmeetings to ensure timely and

appropriate review of care and treatment.

• The trust must ensure that appropriate leadership is in

place to ensure that governance structures in place to

monitor and improve the service.

• The trust must ensure that request for second opinion

doctors are made in a timely manner.

• The trust must ensure T2 and T3 certificates are

completed accurately and reviewed for errors.

• The trust must ensure all sta receive training in the

MHA and MCA.

Community-based mental health services for older people

• The trust must ensure they reduce the waiting times

for psychological therapies.

Specialist community MH services for children

• The trust must take action to improve the overall

waiting time for young people accessing treatment.

• The trust must devise a proactive system for

monitoring risks of young people waiting to be seen.

• The trust must ensure audits are undertaken to ensure

that new systems and ways of working become

embedded in practice and that quality standards are

being followed.

• The trust must devise a system for monitoring total

number of open cases, total number of patients on a

waiting list, individual sta caseload sizes.

Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric

intensive care units

• The trust must ensure that there are clear lines of sight

on Trinity 2, Ashdale, Elmdale and Priory 2.

• The trust must ensure that sta ing levels, skill mix and

how sta are deployed is appropriate on all wards.

• The trust must ensure that sta receive appropriate

supervision on all wards.

Summary of findings

21 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 41



• The trust must ensure that consent to treatment and

where appropriate, capacity assessments are

completed and recorded appropriately.

• The trust must ensure high doses of medication are

monitored.

Forensic inpatient & secure wards

• The trust must ensure that sta ing levels are

appropriate to meet the needs of the patients.

• The trust must ensure that the clinic room

temperature is safe for the storage of medicines.

• The trust must ensure that positive behaviour support

plans are implemented for all patients with learning

disability or autism.

• The trust must ensure that there are e ective systems

in place to record levels of sta training and

supervision.

• The trust must continue with plans to improve the

consistency of Mental Health Act, Mental Capacity Act

and immediate life support training.

Action the provider SHOULD take to improve

Trust-wide

• The trust should ensure that all the non-executive

directors and the executive directors have accessible

evidence that the individuals have been checked

against insolvency, director disqualification,

bankruptcy and debt relief, and with Companies

House, in with the fit and proper person requirement,

which came into force for NHS bodies on the 1October

2014.

• The trust should ensure that they comply with the

requirements of regulation 20 of the Health and Social

Care Act 2008 (regulated activities) regulations 2014,

duty of candour. They should ensure that there is a

clear written apology sent to patients, relatives in

carers and details. They should also ensure that

written details of the investigation into the incident,

and the findings, are sent to the patients, relative or

carer.

• The trust should ensure data collected regarding the

use of restraint, seclusion and long-term segregation is

accurate.

Community health inpatient services:

• The trust should consider recording patients’ goals

and discharge plans to ensure that patients are able to

review the details.

• The trust should ensure that early warning scores are

recorded consistently across all community inpatient

wards.

• The trust should ensure that on ward 4 early warning

scores are recorded on the EWS chart rather than

retrospectively on the care plan.

• The trust should review the availability of therapies

and activities in the a!ernoon to ensure that patients

have a su icient range of activities.

• The trust should take action to reduce the length of

stay.

• The trust should review the roles of healthcare

assistants in community inpatients services to ensure

that there is consistency across the wards.

• The trust should consider improving the environment

for dementia patients in community in patient

services.

Community health services for children and young people:

• The trust should ensure that all sta adhere to

infection protection and control guidelines, in

particular bare below elbows, in community clinics.

• The trust should risk assess school nurse sta ing

vacancies to ensure that there is su icient capacity to

safely manage safeguarding concerns.

• The trust should work to reduce the waiting times for

children’s therapy services from the current position of

18-20 weeks.

• The trust should work to provide assurance to sta 

that services for children and young people are part of

the wider trust and have strong representation from

floor to board level.

Community end of life care services:

• The trust should ensure that measurable

improvements are demonstrated in relation to

improving specialist support for patients with long

term conditions at the end of life.

Community health services for adults.

• The trust should ensure that lines of accountability to

the senior management team are clear to sta in front

line community services

Summary of findings

22 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 42



• The trust should ensure that community services sta 

are fully engaged and consulted as to the

transformation of community services.

• The trust should ensure that community clinics

provided by the district nursing service are reviewed in

liaison with practice nursing provided by primary care

to ensure community nursing consistently prioritises

housebound patients.

• The trust should ensure that the podiatry service is

sta ed to planned establishment levels.

• The trust should ensure the sta intranet and trust

internet reflect the full range of community services

available for patients.

• The trust should ensure that patient group directions

used in community services are up to date.

• The trust should ensure that the policy for lone

working in up to date.

• The trust should ensure arrangements to record

clinical supervision are in place.

Community mental health services for adults of a working

age:

• The trust should ensure the RIO electronic care

records system is robust and reduce susceptibility to

down time.

• The trust should ensure that they continue to work

with commissioning bodies to reduce waiting times to

the attention deficit and hyperactivity disorder and

autism service.

• The trust should ensure that sta are provided with

appropriate training to manage clients with

comorbidities such as learning disabilities.

• The trust should ensure sta in the Barnsley assertive

outreach teamWakefield single point if access,

Kirklees assertive outreach team and attention deficit

and hyperactivity disorder and autism service receive

training on the Mental Health Act and Mental Capacity

Act.

• The trust should ensure that there is e ective

communication and consultation with sta around the

transformation programme.

Wards for people with learning disabilities or autism:

• The trust should ensure its planned improvement to

provide more accessible patient information is fully

actioned.

• The trust should ensure data collected regarding the

use of restraint and seclusion is accurate.

• The trust should improve its process for recording non-

mandatory training such as MHA and MCA.

• The trust should consider the benefits of providing

mandatory MHA and MCA training to sta .

• The trust should ensure that missed medication doses

are reported on the incident reporting system.

• The trust should ensure accurate recording of

checking of emergency equipment.

Community mental health services for people with learning

disabilities or autism:

• The trust should ensure their risk assessment tool is

used consistently across the service.

• The trust should ensure sta consistently record

details of decisions within capacity assessments.

• The trust should ensure there is a process for all sta 

to access information held in client’s electronic

records.

Long stay/rehabilitation mental health wards for working

age adults:

• The trust should ensure there is adequate space in the

clinic room to carry out physical health examinations

and care.

• The trust should ensure that there are systems in place

for patients to summon assistance.

Community-based mental health services for older people:

• The trust should ensure they involve sta in learning

from incidents.

• The trust should consider how sta throughout the

trust are made aware of lessons learnt following an

incident.

Mental health crisis services and health-based places of

safety:

• The trust should ensure risk assessments are reviewed

in a timely manner.

• The trust should have processes in place that enables

all teams to monitor training around the Mental Health

Act and Mental Capacity Act.

• The trust should ensure that appraisals are completed

equally across the teams.

Summary of findings

23 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 43



• The trust should provide easy read leaflets about its

services in ways that meets the needs of di erent

people, i.e. a di erent language.

Specialist community mental health services for children

and adolescents:

• The trust should continue to implement their own

identified recovery plans in relation to waiting list

management.

• The trust should review and continue to improve

access to contemporaneous clinical records.

• The trust should closely monitor the action plan in

place to reduce information governance breaches and

undertake regular audit to seek assurances that

safeguards are being maintained.

• The trust should ensure sta are up to date with basic

life support training.

• The trust should ensure that environmental risk

assessments have been completed for each of the

community bases.

• The trust should ensure teammanagers undertake an

audit of compliance with the lone worker policy and

review the policy in line with appropriate sta 

feedback.

• The trust should ensure regular audits of clinical

records are undertaken to monitor compliance with

trust policy.

• The trust should ensure regular audits of FP10

prescription use are carried out to ensure safe and

appropriate issuing and storage.

• The trust should consider moving the weighing scales

in the team bases into more private areas.

Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric

intensive care units:

• The trust should ensure that ligature risks are

mitigated on all wards where possible.

• The trust must ensure that shower facilities are

appropriate on Melton suite, Clarke and Beamish

ward.

• The trust should ensure patients are able, with

appropriate risk assessments, to have a bath without

supervision on Beamshaw and Clarke ward.

• The trust should ensure the complaints policy is on

display on all wards.

• The trust should ensure where possible that a bed is

available for patients when they return from leave.

• The trust should ensure that activities are available

seven days a week and on Beamish and Clarke ward

patients should be able to use the gym at weekends.

• The trust should have systems in place to ensure sta ,

where necessary, are aware of and working in

accordance with current guidance in relation to the

Mental Health Act and the Mental Capacity Act.

Forensic inpatient & secure wards:

• The trust should ensure that the care and treatment of

individuals in long-term segregation complies with

Mental Health Act (MHA) code of practice.

• The trust should ensure that the food provision is of

good quality.

• The trust should ensure that sta inform patients of

their rights and record this in patient notes at regular

intervals as set out in the MHA code of practice.

• The trust should ensure that consent and capacity to

consent should be assessed and recorded in patient

notes in accordance with the MHA code of practice.

The trust should ensure that access to patient records is

available for all relevant sta in order for sta to provide

safe patient care.

Summary of findings

24 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Quality Report 24/06/2016
Page 44



Last rated
24 June 2016

Overall
rating

.

.

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led Overall
Acute wards for adults of
working age and
psychiatric intensive care
units

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement Good

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Community health
inpatient services Good Good Good Good Good Good

Community health
services for adults Good Good Good Good Good Good

Community health
services for children,
young people and families

Good Good
Outstanding

Good Good Good

Community mental health
services for people with
learning disabilities or
autism

Good Good Good
Requires

improvement
Requires

improvement
Requires

improvement

Community-based mental
health services for adults
of working age

Good Good Good
Requires

improvement Good Good

Community-based mental
health services for older
people

Good
Requires

improvement Good
Requires

improvement Good
Requires

improvement

Forensic inpatient/secure
wards Requires

improvement
Requires

improvement Good Good
Requires

improvement
Requires

improvement

Long stay/rehabilitation
mental health wards for
working age adults

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement Good Good

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Mental health crisis
services and health-based
places of safety

Good Good Good Good Good Good

Inadequate Requires
improvement

Good Outstanding

Page 45

AnnaM_1
Typewritten Text
Item 4c



Last rated
24 June 2016

.

.

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led Overall
Specialist community
mental health services for
children and young people

Requires
improvement Good Good

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Wards for older people
with mental health
problems

Requires
improvement Good Good Good Good Good

Wards for people with
learning disabilities or
autism

Good Good Good Good Good Good

End of life care
Good

Outstanding
Good Good Good Good

Page 46



1

Report of the Executive Director of Communities & 
the Director of Human Resources, 
Performance & Communications,

to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
on 4th October 2016 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council’s (BMBC’s) Customer Service Strategy 
2015-18

1.0 Purpose of the Report

1.1 This report is submitted at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(OSC) to provide an update on the work being undertaken to implement the 
Council’s Customer Service Strategy.

2.0 Introduction

2.1 The Customer Service Strategy published in autumn 2015 sets out the Council’s 
vision and objectives for change in the way the Council engages with its customers, 
our commitment to getting customer service right and to continually improving the 
customer experience. This includes enhancing our online offer to enable customers 
to access services 24/7; promoting self-reliance whilst continuing to offer support to 
those who need our help.

2.2 A Member Task & Finish Group (TFG), established by the OSC, reviewed the 
strategy and produced a number of suggestions and recommendations regarding 
the work being undertaken to implement it. The findings of this review and 
subsequent officer feedback were the subject of reports to Cabinet in March and 
May respectively (Cab.9.3.2016/9 and Cab.18.5.2016/20).

2.3 It was agreed that a further update on the continuing work to implement the 
Customer Service Strategy would be provided to OSC after 6 months and this 
report aims to provide this.

3.0 Progress Update

3.1 The activities to implement the strategy are being managed through a programme 
of work governed by a senior officer group and reporting into the Future Council 
Improvement and Growth Board. As part of the initial phases of work we have 
introduced new computer systems for customer contact management, launched the 
Council’s new look website and introduced a customer service focused social media 
presence.

3.2 Future plans, outlined at section 4 below, are being developed in collaboration with 
front line services and with the support of our IT colleagues to help us to use 
technology to improve the way we deliver services.  The aim is to produce smarter 
more efficient services to benefit both the customer and the organisation. 

3.3 With reference to the previous review undertaken by TFG, a number of 
recommendations were made by the group which are outlined below along with the 
most recent update:

Page 47

Item 5



2

Recommendation 1: To undertake a mapping exercise of IT provision across 
the Borough including computer and WiFi access as well as training support
Providing opportunities for customers to access our services online is recognised as 
a key enabler to the successful delivery of the Customer Services Strategy.  

Free WiFi is now available in all of our libraries together with free to use internet 
ready devices.  In collaboration with partner agencies we’re working to develop a 
borough-wide map of IT provision and training support at publicly accessible 
locations.  

The ‘Device Doctor’ sessions provided by our Digital Champions are targeting gaps 
in digital skills and areas of low online take up. The sessions are forward planned in 
various community venues and are free to book: 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/community-and-volunteering/device-doctor-
sessions/

The sessions are delivered in conjunction with Berneslai Homes (their Digital 
Inclusion Officer) and our own Adult Learning team.  We are also recruiting the help 
of community volunteers so that our reach can be extended and some local 
capacity for this kind of support developed.

Recommendation 2: Seek feedback from both internal and external customers 
regarding customer feedback processes
The Customer Feedback and Improvement team manages customer complaints, 
compliments and comments.  The team also routinely asks for feedback from 
Customers on their experience of contacting us and uses this to improve the way 
we do things.

On the Council website (www.Barnsley.gov.uk) we have recently introduced a 
simple feedback option which customers can use to give us their views on our 
website.  We also plan to introduce a customer satisfaction survey for all of our 
access channels, including face to face and telephone.  This should be in place by 
Q4 and will enable us to learn from customer experiences and shape the way we 
deliver services in the future.

Recommendation 3: Facilitate feedback from Members regarding frequently 
asked questions (FAQs) they receive
The refresh of our website is well underway and with over 3,500 pages of 
information this will take several months to complete.  Emphasis is placed on 
ensuring our online information is easy to access, accurate and written in simple 
language.

As always, feedback from Elected Members on any shortcomings or ideas for 
improvement is especially welcomed so that we can learn and improve our online 
offer.  It is proposed to arrange a session with the Member Development Working 
Party (MDWP) so that we can undertake a focused piece on this in the near future.

Recommendation 4: Need to make sure all types of customer access 
channels are maintained
The Customer Service Strategy is clear about our intention to provide a range of 
customer contact options supported by clear information, advice and guidance.  The 
development of our online digital offer is a crucial part of this and the aim is to 
support and encourage as many people as possible to contact us using self-service 
options.  

Page 48

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/community-and-volunteering/device-doctor-sessions/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/community-and-volunteering/device-doctor-sessions/
http://www.barnsley.gov.uk/


3

As outlined above our Digital Champions are providing essential support in our 
communities to enable many more people to gain the confidence and skills to get 
online.  They are also working with our staff and Members to support them in 
improving their digital confidence so that we can all support our customers to 
choose online options wherever possible. 

Of course our strategy recognises that some of our customers will need more help 
than others and Customer Service teams are providing this support via our 
telephone contact centre and for the most complex enquiries a face to face 
appointment is made.  

Earlier this year we also launched a dedicated social media presence for customer 
service enquiries on Facebook and Twitter called ‘Barnsley Help’ which is becoming 
more popular as a trusted source of advice and information and quick and easy 
route to use.  
Recommendation 5: Services to increasingly use videos to explain how to use 
services
The first of our explanatory videos was launched a few weeks ago for the Waste 
and Recycling Service and can be accessed from our website here:
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/bins-rubbish-and-recycling/what-goes-in-your-
bin/

There’s a spoken version together with a BSL signed version produced with the kind 
support of members of the Deaf Engagement Action Party.

As we continue the refresh of information on our website we are exploring the need 
for videos to support written information.  However, there are inevitably additional 
costs involved here and as a result we will need to prioritise the services which our 
customers’ access most and where greatest need exists.

4.0 Future Plans

4.1 An ambitious programme of change and improvement in customer service delivery 
has been defined which will realise significant improvements over the next two 
years in the lead up to 2020.  This will include:

 Making further improvements to our digital offer to include more self-service 
options, enabling customers to apply, book or pay for more services online.

 Introducing live webchat to our website so that customers can get help from 
an advisor whilst they’re online;

 Routinely asking our customers to tell us about their experience of contacting 
us through customer satisfaction surveys;

 Working with partner agencies to deliver a joined up approach to the 
provision of ‘universal’ information and advice – ‘No wrong door’, i.e. help our 
customers to get to the information they need regardless of where they 
choose to access it;

 Simplifying telephone access by reducing to four key customer contact 
numbers.

Page 49

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/bins-rubbish-and-recycling/what-goes-in-your-bin/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/bins-rubbish-and-recycling/what-goes-in-your-bin/


4

5.0 Challenges

5.1 One of our corporate performance targets is to increase the proportion of customer 
self-service contacts, i.e. those that are done online by the customer with no officer 
intervention.  The target we’ve set for 2020 is 70% when measured against 
telephone and face to face contacts.  We’re currently achieving around 37% so we 
have a challenge in front of us and our future delivery plans specifically include 
activities to enable and support many more of our customers to contact us using 
online options. 

5.2 The Customer Service Strategy sets out the Council’s overall vision for future 
delivery of customer service.  This is relevant to all front-facing Council services not 
just the Customer Services Business Unit.  Our challenge here is to work 
collaboratively across all internal services and with partners to co-produce better, 
more cost-effective services for the benefit of all our customers.

6.0 Invited Witnesses

6.1 The following witnesses have been invited to today’s meeting to answer questions 
from the OSC regarding this work:

 Ann O’Flynn, Service Director, Customer Services, BMBC
 Hazel Shaw, Head of Customer Support & Development, BMBC
 Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson - Communities, BMBC

7.0     Possible Areas for Investigation

7.1 Members may wish to ask questions around the following areas:

 To what extent have we seen channel shift of customers self-serving online?

 What do our customers think to the changes in access to services and our digital 
offer?

 Are we learning from best practice in other areas and is this being integrated into 
our service planning, design and delivery?

 How will you ensure our services are accessible to all our communities, 
particularly our most vulnerable?

 To what extent have the Digital Champions had a positive impact in enabling 
more people to get online? What evidence is there to support this?

 What is being done to ensure that all services effectively implement the 
Customer Services Strategy?

 Are key stakeholders engaged and supportive in delivering this strategy to 
ensure a joined up approach, enabling our customer to access the information 
they need?

 How can Members support the effective delivery of the Customer Services 
Strategy? 

Page 50



5

8.0     Background Papers and Useful Links

 Scrutiny Task and Finish Group (TFG) report on ‘BMBC’s Customer Service 
Strategy 2015-18’ (Cab.9.3.2016/9):
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9798/Appendix%201.pdf

 Response to recommendations of the Scrutiny Task & Finish Group (TFG) 
regarding ‘BMBC’s Customer Service Strategy 2015-18’ (Cab.18.5.2016/20):
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9797/Response%20to%20the
%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report%20on%20Custo
mer%20Services%20Strategy.pdf

 BMBC’s Customer Service Strategy 2015-18 (Cab.9.9.2015/12):
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s3531/Customer%20Services%
20Strategy%20Appendix%201.pdf

 BMBC’s Customer Service Strategy 2015-18 Equality Impact Assessment 
(Cab.9.9.2015/12): 
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s3532/Customer%20Services%
20Strategy%20Appendix%202.pdf

9.0 Glossary

BMBC - Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
FAQs - Frequently Asked Questions
OSC - Overview and Scrutiny Committee
TFG - Task and Finish Group
WiFi - Wireless Fidelity (wireless internet access)

10.0 Officer Contact

Hazel Shaw, Head of Customer Support & Development (01226 772552)
Anna Morley, Scrutiny Officer (01226 775794)

26th September 2016

Page 51

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9798/Appendix%201.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9797/Response%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report%20on%20Customer%20Services%20Strategy.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9797/Response%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report%20on%20Customer%20Services%20Strategy.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9797/Response%20to%20the%20Scrutiny%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report%20on%20Customer%20Services%20Strategy.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s3531/Customer%20Services%20Strategy%20Appendix%201.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s3531/Customer%20Services%20Strategy%20Appendix%201.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s3532/Customer%20Services%20Strategy%20Appendix%202.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s3532/Customer%20Services%20Strategy%20Appendix%202.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 South West Yorkshire NHS Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) Care Quality Commission (CQC) Inspection Outcome
	Item 4b - SWYPFT CQC Inspection Report-Summary
	Item 4c - SWYPFT CQC Individual Service Ratings Summary Poster
	Last rated
	24 June 2016
	South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
	Overall rating
	Last rated
	24 June 2016

	South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust


	5 BMBC's Customer Service Strategy 2015-18 - Implementation Update



